

APA-1

TRANSMITTAL SHEET FOR NOTICE
OF INTENDED ACTION

Control: 482

Department or Agency: Alabama Department of Insurance Insurance Regulation

Rule No.: Chapter 482-1-159

Rule Title: Strengthen Alabama Homes

Intended Action Amend

Would the absence of the proposed rule significantly harm or endanger the public health, welfare, or safety? No

Is there a reasonable relationship between the state's police power and the protection of the public health, safety, or welfare? Yes

Is there another, less restrictive method of regulation available that could adequately protect the public? No

Does the proposed rule have the effect of directly or indirectly increasing the costs of any goods or services involved? No

To what degree?: N/A

Is the increase in cost more harmful to the public than the harm that might result from the absence of the proposed rule? NA

Are all facets of the rule-making process designed solely for the purpose of, and so they have, as their primary effect, the protection of the public? Yes

Does the proposed action relate to or affect in any manner any litigation which the agency is a party to concerning the subject matter of the proposed rule? No

.....

Does the proposed rule have an economic impact? No

If the proposed rule has an economic impact, the proposed rule is required to be accompanied by a fiscal note prepared in accordance with subsection (f) of Section 41-22-23, Code of Alabama 1975.

.....

Certification of Authorized Official

I certify that the attached proposed rule has been proposed in full compliance with the requirements of Chapter 22, Title 41, Code of Alabama 1975, and that it conforms to all applicable filing requirements of the Administrative Procedure Division of the Legislative Services Agency.

Signature of certifying officer

Reyn Norman
Reyn Norman

REC'D & FILED

Date

Thursday, April 18, 2024 APR 18, 2024

LEGISLATIVE SVC AGENCY

ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE
INSURANCE REGULATION

NOTICE OF INTENDED ACTION

AGENCY NAME: Alabama Department of Insurance

RULE NO. & TITLE: Chapter 482-1-159 Strengthen Alabama Homes

INTENDED ACTION: Amend

SUBSTANCE OF PROPOSED ACTION:

The Alabama Department of Insurance is exempt from the Alabama Administrative Procedures Act pursuant to Section 41-22-2(e), Code of Alabama 1975. The Commissioner proposes updating license requirements and references to FORTIFIED standards.

TIME, PLACE AND MANNER OF PRESENTING VIEWS:

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments in writing at any time prior to 3:00 PM on June 6, 2024, to the Alabama Department of Insurance, Attention: Legal Division, Post Office Box 303351, Montgomery, Alabama 36130-3351, or orally by appearing at the public hearing, Suite 502, RSA Tower, 201 Monroe Street, Montgomery, Alabama, beginning at 10:00 AM, on June 11, 2024.

FINAL DATE FOR COMMENT AND COMPLETION OF NOTICE:

Tuesday, June 11, 2024

CONTACT PERSON AT AGENCY:

Erin Dunagan
Associate Counsel

Reyn Norman

Reyn Norman

(Signature of officer authorized
to promulgate and adopt
rules or his or her deputy)

ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE
INSURANCE REGULATION
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

CHAPTER 482-1-159
STRENGTHEN ALABAMA HOMES

TABLE OF CONTENTS

482-1-159-.01	Purpose, Scope, And Authority
482-1-159-.02	Grants
482-1-159-.03	Grant Award Eligibility (Repealed 7/17/22)
482-1-159-.04	Grant Allocations
482-1-159-.05	Severability And Effective Date
482-1-159-.06	Contractor Eligibility Requirements
482-1-159-.07	Contractor Conflict Of Interest
482-1-159-.08	Evaluator Eligibility Requirements
482-1-159-.09	Evaluator Conflict Of Interest

482-1-159-.01 Purpose, Scope, And Authority.

(1) The purpose of this chapter is to set forth rules and requirements the Commissioner deems necessary to carry out the provisions of ~~Code of Ala.~~Ala. Code 1975, §§27-31E-1, ~~et seq.~~
~~(2014 Repl. Vol.)~~ through 5, relating to the Strengthen Alabama Homes (SAH) program.

(2) This chapter shall apply to all aspects of the SAH program.

(3) This chapter is adopted pursuant to ~~Code of Ala.~~Ala. Code 1975, §§27-2-17 and 27-31E-1, ~~et seq.~~
~~(2014 Repl. Vol.)~~ through 5.

Author: Commissioner of Insurance

Statutory Authority: Code of Ala. 1975, §§27-2-17, 27-31E-2.

History: New Rule: August 12, 2015; effective January 1, 2016.
Filed with LRS August 12, 2015. Rule is not subject to the
Alabama Administrative Procedure Act. Amended: Published
; effective .

482-1-159-.02 Grants.

(1) Eligibility. To be eligible for an SAH grant, an applicant must meet the following requirements:

(a) Homeowner must claim its primary residence in a county where grants are being approved.

(b) The home ~~to be mitigated~~that is the subject of the grant must be an owner occupied, single-family, primary residence, and cannot be a condominium or mobile home.

(c) The home must be in good repair unless damaged by a hurricane, non-hurricane wind, or hail. SAH grant funds cannot be used for maintenance or repairs, but may be used in conjunction with repairs or reconstruction necessitated by damages from a hurricane, non-hurricane wind, or hail.

(d) Homeowner must retrofit the home to the Insurance Institute for Business and Home Safety (IBHS) FORTIFIED RoofTM ~~(Roof) or FORTIFIED SilverTM (Silver) or a~~ (Roof) or FORTIFIED SilverTM (Silver) or an IBHS successor designation.

(e) Homeowner must provide proof of an in-force policy providing wind insurance on the home.

(f) If the home is in a special flood hazard area, homeowner must provide proof of an in-force flood insurance policy. The flood policy may be from the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) or a private carrier.

(g) FORTIFIED projects must be completed within three (3) months of the date of the Grant Approval Notification. Failure to complete the project timely may result in forfeiture of the grant.

(h) Any entity providing funds to the SAH program will be permitted to establish additional rules and guidelines under which those funds may be used, as long as they do not violate any state or federal law.

(2) Application Process.

(a) Homeowner creates an online profile and completes the application.

(b) Homeowner selects a Certified IBHS Evaluator from a list of evaluators provided by SAH.

(c) Evaluator pre-qualifies the home to determine whether the home can be FORTIFIED and, if so, identifies all improvements require to achieve IBHS Roof or Silver levels or an IBHS successor designation~~home to determine whether home is mitigable and, if so, identifies all improvements require to~~

~~achieve IBHS Rood or Silver levels~~ and reports findings to SAH. The Evaluator's fee is paid by the homeowner.

(d) Homeowner submits application to SAH with required documentation: Evaluator's report, most recently filed federal income tax return or approved alternative, a copy of the declaration page from the homeowner's insurance and wind insurance policy or policies, and a vendor disclosure statement.

(e) Homeowner obtains bids for level of work desired (Roof or Silver) from three approved program Contractors.

(3) Approval of Grants.

(a) The SAH staff will review all applications for completeness and will perform appropriate audits to verify the accuracy of the information on the application and that the applicant meets all eligibility rules. Verified applicants are placed in the order received. Grants are awarded on a first-come basis subject to availability of funds.

(b) When a grant is approved, an approval letter is sent to the applicant.

(c) The applicant then selects a contractor of its choice from bids received and enters into an agreement with the Contractor to perform the ~~mitigation~~FORTIFIED work. Contractors are not authorized to begin work until a grant is approved.

(4) Release of Funds. Grant funds will only be released on behalf of an approved applicant once a Roof or Silver certificate has been issued for the home. The funds will be paid by SAH or another designated entity, on behalf of the homeowner, directly to the contractor that performed the ~~mitigation~~FORTIFIED work.

(5) Grant Award Process:

(a) Once the grant application is approved, the Contractor selected by the Homeowner may begin the ~~mitigation~~FORTIFIED work.

(b) Once the ~~mitigation~~FORTIFIED work is completed, the Contractor submits a copy of the signed contract to SAH, along with an invoice seeking payment and an affidavit stating the FORTIFIED standards was met by their work.

(c) The IBHS Evaluator will conduct all required evaluations, including the required interim inspection during construction and the final inspection, confirming that the work was completed according to the ~~mitigation~~FORTIFIED specifications.

(d) SAH or its designated entity pays the Contractor costs covered by the grant; the homeowner pays the remaining cost to the Contractor after receiving an IBHS FORTIFIED Certificate.

(e) SAH confirms the homeowner's insurer provides the appropriate premium credit.

(f) SAH conducts random re-inspections to detect any fraud and submits any irregularities to the ALDOI Fraud Unit.

Author: Commissioner of Insurance

Statutory Authority: Code of Ala. 1975, §§27-2-17, [27-7-43](#), & 27-31E-2.

History: New Rule: August 12, 2015; effective January 1, 2016. Filed with LRS August 12, 2015. Rule is not subject to the Alabama Administrative Procedure Act. **Amended:** November 15, 2017; effective November 25, 2017. Filed with LRS November 15, 2017. Rule is not subject to the Alabama Administrative Procedure Act. **Amended:** November 7, 2018; effective November 17, 2018. Filed with LSA November 7, 2018. Rule is not subject to the Alabama Administrative Procedure Act. **Amended:** July 7, 2022; effective July 17, 2022. Published with LSA July 29, 2022. Rule is not subject to the Alabama Administrative Procedure Act.

Amended: Published ; effective .

482-1-159-.03

Grant Award Eligibility (Repealed 7/17/22).

(REPEALED)

Author: Commissioner of Insurance

Statutory Authority: Code of Ala. 1975, §§27-2-17, 27-31E-2.

History: New Rule: August 12, 2015; effective January 1, 2016. Filed with LRS August 12, 2015. Rule is not subject to the Alabama Administrative Procedure Act. **Revised:** June 14, 2017; effective July 24, 2017. Filed with LRS June 14, 2017. Rule is not subject to the Alabama Administrative Procedure Act.

Repealed: July 7, 2022; effective July 17, 2022. Published with LSA July 29, 2022. Rule is not subject to the Alabama Administrative Procedure Act.

482-1-159-.04

Grant Allocations.

(1) ~~In order to assure equitable distribution of grants in proportion to the income demographics in counties where~~Where the SAH program is made available, grant applications will be accepted on a first-come, first-served basis.

(2) The Commissioner of Insurance may establish ~~pilot~~ projects as needed to establish a sustainable distribution system of the program in any geographic area within the State of Alabama.

Author: Commissioner of Insurance

Statutory Authority: Code of Ala. 1975, §§27-2-17, 27-31E-2.

History: New Rule: August 12, 2015; effective January 1, 2016. Filed with LRS August 12, 2015. Rule is not subject to the Alabama Administrative Procedure Act. **Revised:** June 14, 2017; effective July 24, 2017. Filed with LRS June 14, 2017. Rule is not subject to the Alabama Administrative Procedure Act.

Amended: Published ; effective .

482-1-159-.05

Severability And Effective Date.

(1) If any rule or portion of a rule or its applicability to any person or circumstance is held invalid by any court, the remainder of this chapter or the applicability of the provision to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected.

(2) This chapter shall become effective January 1, 2016, upon its approval by the Commissioner of Insurance and upon its having been on file as a public document in the office of the Secretary of State for ten days.

Author: Commissioner of Insurance

Statutory Authority: Code of Ala. 1975, §§27-2-17, 27-31E-2.

History: New Rule: August 12, 2015; effective January 1, 2016. Filed with LRS August 12, 2015. Rule is not subject to the Alabama Administrative Procedure Act.

482-1-159-.06

Contractor Eligibility Requirements.

To be eligible to work on the SAH program as a Contractor, the Contractor must meet all of the following program requirements and must maintain a current copy of all certificates, licenses, and proof of insurance coverages with the program office:

(a) The Contractor must hold a valid ~~General Contractors license showing they are either a "General Contractor" with a Building Contractor designation (BC) or a Building Contractor under Four Stories (BCU4) designation, or an "Unlimited" license or its successor issued by the Alabama Home Builder Licensure Board and is~~residential home builder's license without limitation, which may be designated as "unlimited", or its successor issued by the Alabama Home Builder Licensure Board. If the Contractor is a general partnership, limited partnership, corporation, limited liability company, or not-for-profit, the qualifying representative representing the contractor must at all times be the same person designated as the contractor's qualifying representative on the face of that contractor's license. The Contractor must be free from all disciplinary action by the Board. _

(b) The Contractor must hold any other valid state or jurisdictional business license or work ~~permits~~permit required by law in Alabama.

(c) ~~An in-force~~The Contractor and each subcontractor used must independently provide proof of insurance with the following minimum coverages:

(1) General Liability policy with \$1,000,000 ~~in liability coverage~~ per occurrence; \$1,000,000 personal and advertising injury; \$2,000,000 aggregate; and \$2,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate;

~~(d) An in-force Workman's Compensation policy with \$1,000,000 in coverage~~(2) Automobile Liability covering owned, non-owned, and hired automobiles with \$1,000,000 per occurrence;

(3) Employer Liability with \$1,000,000 per accident; \$1,000,000 disease policy limit; and \$1,000,000 disease each employee;

(4) Umbrella Liability with \$1,000,000 each occurrence and aggregate; and

(5) Contractors Errors & Omission Liability with \$100,000 each occurrence and aggregate.

(d) The Contractor and each subcontractor used must independently comply with all state and federal Workman's Compensation laws.

(e) A Certificate of Compliance from the State of Alabama Department of Revenue.

(f) Contractor must successfully complete ~~Fortified~~FORTIFIED Roof Contractor for High Wind and Hail and Hurricane training and FORTIFIED Professional for High Wind and Hail and Hurricane training provided by the Insurance Institute for Business and Home Safety (IBHS) or its successor and provide a certificate of successful completion of the training. The training may be offered as separate courses and the contractor is responsible for paying all fees associated with the training.

(g) Contractor must agree to the terms and successfully register with the State of Alabama STAARS Vendor Self Service (VSS) application and receive direct deposit of payment for ~~mitigation~~FORTIFIED work performed under this program.

(h) Contractor must maintain internet access and a valid email address on file with the SAH program and remain active in STAARS while working on the program.

(i) Contractor must maintain an active email address for the communication with the program.

(j) Contractor must successfully complete the SAH program Training.

(k) Contractors must agree to follow SAH program procedures, rules as established by the Commissioner of Insurance.

Author: Commissioner of Insurance

Statutory Authority: Code of Ala. 1975, §§27-2-17, 27-31E-2, ~~Ala. Act 2022-147, & 27-31E-5.~~

History: **New Rule:** July 7, 2022; effective July 17, 2022. Published with LSA July 29, 2022. Rule is not subject to the Alabama Administrative Procedure Act. **Amended:** Published
; effective.

482-1-159-.07

Contractor Conflict Of Interest.

(1) Contractors may not have a financial interest in any project for which they perform work toward a ~~Fortified~~FORTIFIED designation other than for payment on behalf of the homeowner by the SAH program.

(2) Contractors cannot be the Evaluator for a ~~Fortified~~FORTIFIED designation on any project funded by the SAH program.

(3) It is the ~~Contractors~~Contractor's responsibility to report to the SAH program ~~of~~ any potential conflicts of interest before work commences on any job funded by the program.

Author: Commissioner of Insurance

Statutory Authority: Code of Ala. 1975, §§27-2-17, 27-31E-2+
~~Ala. Act 2022-147, & 27-31E-5.~~

History: New Rule: July 7, 2022; effective July 17, 2022.
Published with LSA July 29, 2022. Rule is not subject to the
Alabama Administrative Procedure Act. Amended: Published
; effective.

482-1-159-.08

Evaluator Eligibility Requirements.

To be eligible to work on the SAH program as an Evaluator, the Evaluator must meet all program eligibility requirements ~~and must submit and maintain a copy of all current certificates, licenses to the program,~~ must submit and maintain a copy of all current certificates and licenses, and comply with the following:

(a) The Evaluator must be in good standing with the Insurance Institute for Business and Home Safety maintain an active certification as a FORTIFIED Home Evaluator for Hurricane and High Wind and Hail certificate or its successor.

(b) Must possess an Alabama Business license.

(c) Must be registered with Alabama Secretary of State.

(d) The Evaluator must provide us with a Certificate of Compliance from the State of Alabama Department of Revenue.

(e) The Evaluator must successfully complete the SAH program training.

Author: Commissioner of Insurance

Statutory Authority: Code of Ala. 1975, §§27-2-17, 27-31E-2+
~~Ala. Act 2022-147, & 27-31E-5.~~

History: New Rule: July 7, 2022; effective July 17, 2022.
Published with LSA July 29, 2022. Rule is not subject to the
Alabama Administrative Procedure Act. Amended: Published
; effective.

482-1-159-.09

Evaluator Conflict Of Interest.

(1) Evaluators may not have a financial interest in any project for which they inspect for designation purposes for the SAH program (SAH).

(2) Evaluators cannot be a contractor or supplier of any materials and/or products or systems installed in any home that they inspect for designation purposes for the SAH program.

(3) Evaluators cannot be a sales agent for any home being designated for the SAH program.

(4) Evaluators have a duty to inform the SAH program of any potential conflicts of interest.

Author: Commissioner of Insurance

Statutory Authority: Code of Ala. 1975, §§27-2-17, 27-31E-2, ~~Ala. Act 2022-147~~, & 27-31E-5.

History: New Rule: July 7, 2022; effective July 17, 2022. Published with LSA July 29, 2022. Rule is not subject to the Alabama Administrative Procedure Act. Amended: Published
; effective .